

7

Broadform Liability Wording

Policy Wording

The insurer of this product is:

SBI General Insurance Co. Ltd.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

IMPORTANT INFORMATION	1
Duty of Disclosure	1
Code of Practice	1
Complaints - Internal and External Complaints Procedure	1
Privacy	1
POLICY WORDING	2
1. AGREEMENT	2
2. INSURING CLAUSE	2
3. COSTS and EXPENSES	2
4. LIMIT OF LIABILITY	3
5 EXCLUSIONS	4
5.1 Advertising Injury	4
5.2 Aircraft, Hovercraft	4
5.3 Asbestos	4
5.4 Contractual Liability	5
5.5 Criminal, Fraudulent, Malicious, Wilful or Dishonest Acts	5
5.6 Electronic Data	6
5.7 Employers Liability	6
5.8 Faulty Workmanship 5.0 Fines Populties Publishes Exemplant or Aggregated Damages	6 6
5.9 Fines, Penalties, Punitive, Exemplary or Aggravated Damages5.10 Insured Property	6
5.11 Libel and Slander	6
5.12 Liquidated Damages	6
5.13 Loss of Use	7
5.14 Pollution	7

5.15 Products Defects



17

5.16 Products Guarantee	7
5.17 Products Recall	7
5.18 Professional Liability	8
5.19 Property in the Physical or Legal Control	8
5.20 Radioactive Contamination	9
5.21 Terrorism	9
5.22 Vehicles	9
5.23 War	10
5.24 Watercraft	10
6. CONDITIONS	11
6.1 Acquisitions	11
6.2 Bankruptcy or Insolvency	11
6.3 Cancellation	11
6.4 Claims Notification and Procedures	12
6.5 Currency	12
6.6 Cross Liabilities	12
6.7 Deductible	12
6.8 Discharge of Liabilities	13
6.9 Inspection and Audit	13
6.10 Policy Law	13
6.11 Headings	13
6.12 Notice of Change	13
6.13 Other Insurance	13
6.14 Premium Adjustment	13
6.15 Reasonable Care	13
6.16 Release	14
6.17 Singular and Plural	14
6.18 Subrogation and Allocation of proceeds of the Recoveries	14
6.19 Subrogation Waiver	15
7. DEFINITIONS	16
7.1 Advertising Injury	16
7.2 Aircraft	16
7.3 Compensation	16
7.4 Electronic Data	16
7.5 Employee	16
7.6 Employment Practices	
7.7 General Liability	16
7.8 Geographical Limits	16
7.9 Hovercraft	16
7.10 Incidental Contracts	17

SBI General Insurance Company Limited

7.11 Insured



	SOLONIO IN AGIL SI INICOSA SOLO
7.12 Insured Business	17
7.13 Limits of Liability	17
7.14 Medical Persons	17
7.15 North America	18
7.16 Occurrence	18
7.17 Period of Insurance	18
7.18 Personal Injury	18
7.19 Policy	18
7.20 Pollutants	18
7.21 Products	18
7.22 Products Liability	19
7.23 Property Damage	19
7.24 Schedule	19
7.25 Stand Alone Superannuation Fund	19
7.26 Terrorism	19
7.27 Tool of Trade	19
7.28 Vehicle	19
7.29 Watercraft	19
7.30 We, Us and Our	19
7.31 Worksite	19
7.32 You and Your	20



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Duty of Disclosure

Before You enter into a contract of general insurance with Us, You have a duty at law to disclose to Us anything that You could reasonably be expected to know is relevant to Our decision whether to accept the risk of insurance and if so, on what terms.

You have the same duty to disclose those matters to Us before you renew, extend, vary or reinstate a contract of general insurance.

Your duty however does not require disclosure of a matter:

- that diminishes the risk to be undertaken by Us:
- that is of common knowledge;
- that We know or, in the ordinary course of business, ought to know;
- as to which compliance with Your duty is waived by the Company.



POLICY WORDING

Please read this document carefully as it sets out the Schedule, Exclusions, Conditions, Definitions, Endorsements and any other terms that apply to this contract of general insurance. These documents should be read together and any word or expression that has been given specific meaning in this Policy shall bear this meaning wherever it appears. The singular shall include the plural and vice versa where applicable.

1. AGREEMENT

Subject to the terms, conditions, exclusions and endorsements of this Policy We agree to indemnify You where the Insured named in the Schedule has paid or agreed to pay the premium to Us.

2. INSURING CLAUSE

We will pay all amounts that You shall become legally liable to pay by way of Compensation for, Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury which happens during the Period of Insurance as a result of an Occurrence within the Geographical Limits in connection with the Insured Business.

3. COSTS AND EXPENSES

We will in respect of any Claim covered by the Insuring Clause:

- defend, in Your name and on Your behalf, any claim or suit against You alleging Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury and seeking damages on account thereof even if any of the allegations made in such claim or suit are groundless, false or fraudulent;
- **3.2** pay all charges, expenses and legal costs incurred by Us or by You with Our prior written consent for:
 - (a) the investigation, defence or settlement of any such claim or suit, including loss of salaries or wages because of Your attendance at any hearing or trial at Our request; or
 - (b) bringing or defending appeals in connection with such claim or suit;
- pay all charges, expenses and legal costs recoverable from or awarded against You in any such claim or suit and all interest accruing on our portion of any judgement until We have paid, tendered or deposited in court that part of such judgement which does not exceed the Limit of Liability;



3.4 pay expenses incurred by You for:

- (a) rendering first aid or surgical or medical relief to others at the time of any Personal Injury (other than any medical expenses where payment is prevented by law);
- (b) temporary protection of damaged or undamaged property of any person or party, including temporary repairs, shoring up or underpinning thereof;
- (c) purchasing or hiring or erection and dismantling or hoarding, barriers, fences and any other form of temporary protection, including any such protection which You are required to provide by any Government, Local Government or other Statutory Authority;
- **3.5** pay all legal costs incurred by You with Our consent for Your representation at any:
 - (a) investigation or inquiry;
 - (b) proceedings in any court or tribunal relating to liability insured against by this Policy.

provided that:

- (i) any amounts paid by Us as costs and expenses, will be in addition to the applicable Limits of Liability;
- (ii) in respect of any claims or suits originating in any court in North America, the Limit of Liability will include all amounts paid by us as Costs and Expenses;
- (iii) where We are prevented by law or otherwise from making payments on Your behalf, We will indemnify You for legal liability incurred to the extent that such liability is covered by this Policy;
- (iv) in jurisdictions where We may not legally be permitted to, or cannot for any other reason, defend any claim or suit against You, We will reimburse You for the costs of defending that claim or suit incurred with Our prior written consent.

4. LIMIT OF LIABILITY

The Limit of Liability specified in the Schedule represents the maximum amount which We shall be liable to pay in respect of any one claim or series of claims arising out of any one Occurrence.

However, for Products Liability the Limit of Liability specified in the Schedule represents the maximum amount which We shall be liable to pay

- (a) in respect of any one claim or series of claims, and
- (b) in the aggregate during the Period of Insurance.

The Deductible payable by You will not reduce the applicable Limit of Liability.



5. EXCLUSIONS

This Policy does not cover:

5.1 Advertising Injury

Liability for Compensation in connection with Advertising Injury resulting from:

- (a) any statement made at Your direction where You are aware or reasonably suspect that the statement or part of the statement is false;
- (b) Your failure to perform Your obligations pursuant to any contract. However this Exclusion 5.1 (b) shall not apply to any claim for unauthorised appropriation of advertising ideas contrary to an implied contract;
- (c) any incorrect description of the Products or services;
- (d) from any mistake in advertised price of the Products or services;
- (e) any failure of the Product or services to conform with advertised purpose, performance, quality, fitness, longevity, or durability;
- (f) your activities where Your principal occupation or business is advertising, broadcasting, publishing or telecasting.

5.2 Aircraft, Hovercraft, & Aircraft Products

Liability for Compensation arising from:

- (a) the ownership, maintenance, operation, or use by You of any Aircraft or Hovercraft;
- (b) any property used for the purpose of an airport or any Aircraft landing strip;
- (c) any Products which You knew or have reasonable cause to believe would be or are intended for incorporation into any part of an Aircraft's or a Hovercraft's structure, engines, machinery, skirts, propellers, electrical systems, computer systems, fuel or hydraulic systems, temperature or oxygenation systems, or navigation and control systems.

5.3. Asbestos

Liability for Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury directly or indirectly caused by, arising from or in any way connected to asbestos.



5.4 Contractual Liability

Liability assumed by You under any contract, warranty or agreement that requires You to:

- (a) effect insurance cover over real or personal property;
- (b) assume liability for Compensation regardless of fault;

However this exclusion 5.4(b) shall not apply to any:

- (i) liability that would have been implied by law in the absence of such contract, warranty or agreement; or
- (ii) liability pursuant to contractual terms including warranties regarding merchantability, quality, fitness or care of the Products which are implied by law or statute; or
- (iii) liability assumed under an Incidental Contract; or
- (iv) liability assumed under any contracts specifically designated in the Schedule or in any endorsement(s) to this Policy.

5.5 Criminal, Fraudulent, Malicious, Wilful or Dishonest Acts

Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury caused by, arising from or in any way connected with any alleged or actual criminal, fraudulent, malicious, wilful or dishonest act or omission committed by You or on Your behalf or at Your direction.

5.6 Electronic Data

Liability directly or indirectly caused by, arising from or in any way connected with:

- (a) the communication, display, distribution, or publication of Electronic Data;
- (b) the total or partial destruction, distortion, erasure, corruption, alteration, misinterpretation or misappropriation of Electronic Data;
- (c) any error on creating, amending, entering, deleting or using Electronic Data;
- (d) the total or partial inability or failure to receive, send, access or use Electronic Data for any time period or at all;
- (e) any business interruption losses resulting from any of the matters mentioned in (a) to (d) above.



5.7 Employers Liability

Liability caused by, arising from or in any way connected with:

(a) Personal Injury to any worker in respect of which You are or would be entitled to indemnity under any policy of insurance, fund, scheme or self insurance pursuant to or required by any law or legislation relating to workers compensation or accident compensation whether or not such policy, fund, scheme or self insurance has been effected.

However, this Exclusion 5.7 (a) will not apply to the extent that Your liability would not be covered under any such policy, fund, scheme or self insurance arrangement had You complied with your obligations pursuant to any such law or legislation.

- (b) the provisions of any industrial award or agreement or determination or any contract of employment or workplace agreement where such liability would not have been imposed in the absence of such industrial award or agreement or determination or contract of employment or workplace agreement.
- (c) any law relating to Employment Practices.

For the purpose of this exclusion 5.7 the term 'worker' means any person deemed to be employed by You pursuant to any Workers Compensation law or legislation. Voluntary workers, secondees and work experience students (if any) shall not be deemed to be Your workers;

5.8 Faulty or Incomplete Work

The cost of performing, completing, correcting or improving any work undertaken by or on Your behalf, but this Exclusion 5.8 does not apply to Personal Injury or Property Damage resulting from such unperformed, incomplete, incorrect or unimproved work.

5.9 Fines, Penalties, Punitive, Exemplary or Aggravated Damages

Liability for any fines, penalties, punitive damages, exemplary damages, aggravated damages and any additional damages resulting from the multiplication of compensatory damages.

5.10 Libel and Slander

Liability for libel and slander:

- (a) resulting from statements made prior to the commencement of the Period of Insurance;
- (b) resulting from any statement made at Your direction where You know or reasonably suspect the statement or part of the statement to be false;
- (c) incurred by You if the Insured Business is advertising, broadcasting, publishing or telecasting.



5.11 Liquidated Damages

Liability arising out of liquidated damages clauses, penalty clauses or performance warranties except to the extent that the liability would have attached in the absence of such clauses or warranties.

5.12 Loss of Use

Liability for loss of use of tangible property, which has not been physically lost, damaged or destroyed, directly arising out of:

- (a) a delay in or lack of performance by You or on Your behalf of any contract or agreement; or
- (b) the failure of any Products or work performed by You or on Your behalf to meet the level of performance, purpose, quality, fitness, longevity, or durability expressly or impliedly warranted or represented by you. However this Exclusion 5.13 (b) shall not apply to loss of use of other tangible property resulting from sudden and accidental physical loss, destruction of or damage to any Products or work performed by You or on Your behalf after such Insured Products or work have been put to use by any person or organisation other than You.

5.13 Owned Property

Property Damage to property owned by You.

5.14 Pollution

Liability caused by, arising directly or indirectly from or in any way connected with:

- (a) the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, dispersal, release or escape of Pollutants into or upon land, the atmosphere or any watercourse or body of water;
- (b) the cost of testing and monitoring for, removing, nullifying, or cleaning up of Pollutants.

Provided that with respect to liability incurred outside North America Exclusion, 5.14 shall not apply where such discharge, dispersal, release or escape is caused by a sudden, identifiable, unintended and unexpected event from your standpoint which takes place in its entirety at a specific time and place during the Period of Insurance. Exclusion 5.14 will apply to any liability incurred in North America regardless of how it arises.

5.15 Products Defect

Liability caused by, arising from or in any way connected with Property Damage to any Products where such Property Damage is directly caused by a fault or defect in the Products; however, this Exclusion 5.15 will only apply to Property Damage to the specific part of the Product which directly causes the damage due to its faulty or defective nature.



5.16 Product Guarantee

Liability directly or indirectly caused by, arising from or in any way connected with any warranty or guarantee by You or on Your behalf in relation to any Insured Product. However this Exclusion 5.16 shall not apply to the product safety, product standards or product information requirements of any Commonwealth State or Territory legislation.

5.17 Product Recall

Liability for damages, costs or expenses arising out of the withdrawal, recall, inspection, repair, reconditioning, modification, reinstallation, replacement or loss of use of any Products, where such Products are withdrawn or recalled from the market or from use by any person or organisation because of any known, alleged or suspected defect or deficiency in such Products.

5.18 Professional Liability

Liability caused by or arising out of any breach of duty owed in a professional capacity or any error or omission connected therewith, by You or any person for whose breaches You may be held legally liable. However, this Exclusion shall not apply to any claim for Personal Injury or Property Damage arising out of:

- (a) the rendering of or failure to render professional medical advice by Medical Persons employed by the Insured to provide first aid at Your premises where Your business or profession does not involve the provision of medical treatment; or
- (b) professional advice or services provided by You without charging a fee; or
- (c) advice given by You in respect of the use or storage of the Products.

5.19 Property in Physical or Legal Control

Liability for Property Damage to property owned by, leased, hired, on loan or rented to You or otherwise in Your physical or legal control other than:

- (a) premises or part of the premises (including the contents of such premises) leased or rented to You, or temporarily occupied by You for the purpose of the Insured Business, but no indemnity is granted if You have assumed the responsibility to insure such premises;
- (b) premises temporarily occupied by You (including the contents of such premises) for the purpose of carrying out work in connection with the Insured Business but no indemnity is granted for physical damage to or destruction of that part of any premises or contents on which You have been working if such physical damage or destruction arises from such work;
- (c) any other property temporarily in Your possession for the purpose of being worked upon, but no indemnity is granted for physical damage to or destruction of that part of any property on which You have been working if such physical damage or destruction arises from such work;



- (d) any Vehicle (including its contents, spare parts and accessories while they are in or on a Vehicle) not belonging to or used by You, whilst such Vehicle is in a car park owned or operated by you provided that You do not operate the car park for reward, as a principal part of the Insured Business;
- (e) the personal property, tools and effects of any of Your directors, partners, proprietors, officers, executives or Employees, or the clothing and personal effects of any of Your visitors;
- (f) any property (except property owned by You) not mentioned above whilst in Your physical or legal care, custody or control where You have accepted or assumed legal liability for such property other than under a contract. Our liability to pay Compensation under this clause 5.19(f) is limited to the amount specified in the Schedule for any one Occurrence during the Period of Insurance.

5.20 Radioactive Contamination

Liability directly or indirectly caused by, arising from or in any way connected with:

- (a) ionising radiation from or contamination by radioactivity from any nuclear fuel or from any nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel;
- (b) the radioactive, toxic, explosive or other hazardous or contaminating properties of any, nuclear installation, reactor or other nuclear assembly or nuclear component thereof;
- (c) any weapon or device employing atomic or nuclear fission or fusion or other like reaction or radioactive force or matter; or
- (d) the radioactive, toxic, explosive or other hazardous or contaminating properties of any radioactive matter.

This Policy also excludes any loss, destruction, damage, death, injury, illness, liability, cost or expense of any nature directly or indirectly caused by, contributed to by, resulting from or arising out of or in connection with any action taken in controlling, preventing, suppressing, retaliating against or, responding to or in any way relating to the above mentioned liability.

5.21 Terrorism

Any, death, injury, illness, loss, damage, liability, cost or expense of any nature directly or indirectly caused by, resulting from, or in connection with:

- (a) any act of Terrorism regardless of any other contributing cause or event; or
- (b) any action taken in controlling, preventing, suppressing or in any way relating to any act of Terrorism.

5.22 Vehicles

Liability for Personal Injury or Property Damage caused by or arising out of the operation, ownership, possession or use by You of any Vehicle:



- (a) which is registered for use on a public road or which is legally required to be so registered; or
- (b) in respect of which compulsory liability insurance or statutory indemnity is required by legislation, whether or not such insurance has been effected or a statutory indemnity provided.

Provided this Exclusion 5.22 shall not apply:

- (i) to Personal Injury where that compulsory liability insurance or statutory indemnity does not provide indemnity for Personal Injury or Property Damage; or
- (ii) where the reason or reasons why the compulsory liability insurance or statutory indemnity does not provide indemnity for Personal Injury or Property Damage do not involve any breach by You of any legislation relating to Vehicles; or
- (iii) where the Personal Injury or Property Damage arises as a result of the use of any Vehicle (including any tool or plant forming part of or attached to or used in connection with such Vehicle) whilst being operated or used by You or on Your behalf as a Tool of Trade at Your premises or any Worksite; or
- (iv) where the Personal Injury or Property Damage arises out of or in connection with the loading or unloading of any Vehicle, or from the delivery or collection of goods by any Vehicle; or
- (v) where the Personal Injury or Property Damage arises as a result of the use of any Vehicle temporarily in Your care, custody and control for the purpose of parking.

5.23 War

Liability directly or indirectly caused by, arising from or in any way connected with:

- (a) war, invasion, act of foreign enemy, hostilities or warlike operations (whether declared or not), civil war; or
- (b) mutiny, civil commotion assuming the proportions of or amounting to a popular rising, military rising, insurrection, rebellion, revolution, military or usurped power.

5.24 Watercraft

Liability directly or indirectly caused by, arising from or in any way connected with the ownership, maintenance, operation or use by You of any Watercraft exceeding 20 metres in length.

However this Exclusion 5.24 shall not apply with regard to claims arising out of:

- (a) Watercraft used in operations carried out by any independent contractor for whose conduct You may be held liable;
- (b) Watercraft owned and operated by others and used by You for business entertainment.



(c) floating jetties, floating pontoons or buoys

6. CONDITIONS

6.1 Acquisitions

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary the indemnity provided by this Policy extends to include properties, assets, companies or firms formed or acquired by You or of which you assume management responsibility, provided that:

- (a) the nature or activities of such properties, assets companies or firms are consistent with the description of Insured Business as stated in the Schedule; or
- (b) where the nature or activities of such property, assets, companies or firms are inconsistent with the description of the Insured Business as stated in the Schedule We must be notified, in writing, as soon as possible but not more than ninety (90) days after the formation, acquisition or assumption of management responsibility.

Provided that:

- (i) We reserve the right to vary the terms of the Policy and charge any additional premium deemed appropriate in the circumstances.
- (ii) no indemnity shall be granted in respect of claims for Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury where such injury or damage occurred prior to the date of such, acquisition, formation or assumption of management responsibility.
- (iii) this automatic provisional cover shall not apply to individuals, companies or firms domiciled in North America, property or assets located in North America or operations or activities in North America.

6.2 Bankruptcy or Insolvency

We shall not be relieved from the payment of any claims by reason of Your becoming bankrupt or insolvent,

In case of the execution against You of any final judgement covered by this Policy being returned 'unsatisfied' by reason of bankruptcy or insolvency, then an action may be maintained by the litigant whose action was successful against You or that litigant's representatives against Us in the same manner and to the same extent as it could have been brought against You subject always to the terms and conditions of the Policy and the Limit of Liability.

6.3 Cancellation

You may cancel this Policy at any time by giving written notice to Us. We will refund to the Insured the prorata premium calculated on the unexpired Period of Insurance from the date of cancellation.



(b) We may also cancel this Policy giving 15 days written notice by recorded delivery on the ground of misrepresentation, fraud, non- disclosure of material facts or non cooperation. In the event of the Policy being cancelled by Us on the grounds of misrepresentation, fraud, non disclosure of material facts, the policy stands cancelled ab- initio and there will be no refund of premium. In the event the policy is cancelled by us on grounds of non- cooperation of insured, a refund will be paid to the Insured for the pro-rata premium calculated on the unexpired Period of Insurance from the date of cancellation.

6.4 Claims Notification and Procedures

You shall:

- (a) without delay provide Us with full written particulars of every Occurrence, circumstance, claim, writ, summons, proceedings, impending prosecution, inquest and the like in respect of which there may arise liability under the Policy;
- (b) use Your best endeavours to preserve any damaged or defective property which may prove necessary or useful by way of evidence in connection with any claim;
- (c) so far as may be reasonably practicable, make no alteration or repair to any premises, machinery, fittings, appliances or plant until We have had an opportunity to inspect them and have given Our written consent, except in order to prevent further Personal injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury;
- (d) in the event of an Occurrence at Your own expense will take all reasonable precautions to prevent further Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury arising out of the same or similar circumstances, but such mitigation costs shall not be recoverable under this Policy;
- (e) not make any admission, offer, promise or payment in connection with any Occurrence or claim without Our written consent;
- (f) give to Us all information, statements, documents and assistance as may reasonably be require in the prosecution, defence or settlement of any claim at Your own expense.

We may take over and conduct in Your name the defence or settlement of any claim or issue legal proceedings for damages or recovery of any amounts paid by Us under this Policy. We will have full discretion in the conduct of any legal proceedings and in the settlement of any claim.

6.5 Currency

The currency applicable to this Policy shall be in Indian Rupees

6.6 Cross Liabilities

Where the Insured comprises more than one legal entity, each of those legal entities shall be treated as if a separate Policy had been issued to each of them. Provided that the amount payable by Us in respect of any one claim or series of claims arising out of one Occurrence or in the aggregate, as the case may be, shall not exceed the Limit of Liability as specified in the Schedule regardless of the number of legal entities that comprise the Insured.



6.7 Deductible

The amount shown in the Schedule as a 'Deductible' shall be the first amount payable for all claims arising out of any one Occurrence which is to be borne by You, including amounts payable under Section 3 of this Policy.

6.8 Discharge of Liabilities

We may at any time pay to You in respect of all claims against You arising directly or indirectly from the one source or original cause

- (a) the Limit of Liability or such limit specified in this Policy in respect thereof (after deduction of any amount or amounts already paid in respect thereof); or
- (b) any lesser amount for which the claim or claims can be settled.

Upon such payment We shall relinquish conduct or control of and be under no further liability under this Policy in connection with such claim or claims except for costs, charges and expenses incurred by Us or You with Our prior written consent.

6.9 Inspection and audit

We shall have the right, but not the obligation, to inspect Your premises and operations at any reasonable time. Neither Our right to make an inspection, nor the failure to make an inspection, nor the making of an inspection, nor any report of any inspection shall constitute an undertaking or representation by Us on Your behalf or for Your or others benefit, to determine or warrant that such premises or operations are safe or healthful or fit for use, or fit for a particular purpose, or compliant with any law, rule or regulation.

6.10 Policy Law

All disputes in relation to this Policy shall be determined by Indian Courts, and in accordance with Indian Law.

6.11 Headings

Headings have been included for ease of reference and the terms and conditions of this Policy are not to be construed or interpreted by reference to such headings.

6.12 Notice of Change

You must immediately give Us full particulars in writing of any alteration to the Insured Business. You will pay such reasonable additional premium as We may deem appropriate arising from such alteration.

6.13 Other Insurance

You must provide Us with full particulars of any other insurance which provides indemnity, in full or in part, for any of the liabilities covered under this Policy within the earlier of 21 days of entering into any such other insurance, or



at the time this Policy is entered into if the other insurance is in force at that time. In the event of a claim We reserve the right to seek contribution from such other insurance.

6.14 Premium Adjustment

Unless otherwise stated the Premium charged for this Policy is a flat premium and not subject to adjustment, except in relation to the provisions contained within Conditions 6.1 and 6.13.

6.15 Reasonable Care

You must:

- (a) exercise reasonable care that only competent Employees, independent contractors and agents are engaged and will take reasonable measures to maintain all premises, fittings and plant in safe and sound condition;
- (b) take all reasonable precautions to:
 - (i) prevent any Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury;
 - (ii) prevent the manufacture, sale or supply of defective Products; and
 - (iii) comply and ensure that Your Employees, independent contractors and agents comply with all statutory obligations, by-laws or regulations imposed by any public authority for the safety of persons or property;
- (c) take reasonable action to trace, recall or modify any Products containing any defect or deficiency of which You know or have reason to suspect has any defect or deficiency. Such reasonable action to trace, recall or modify any Products shall be undertaken at Your expense.

6.16 Release

Where You are required by contractual agreement to release any Government or Public or Local Authority or other Statutory Authority or any landlord from liability in respect of loss, destruction or damage or legal liability insured against under this Policy, such release is allowed without prejudice to this Insurance.

Notwithstanding General Condition 6.18 of this Policy, We agree to waive all Our rights of subrogation against any such Authority or landlord in the event of any Occurrence for which a claim for indemnity may be made under this Policy.

6.17 Singular and plural

In this policy words importing the singular include the plural and the plural the singular, unless the context requires an alternative construction.



6.18 Subrogation and Allocation of the Proceeds of Recoveries

Subject to General Condition 6.19 'Subrogation Waiver', any corporation, organisation or person claiming under this insurance shall, at Our request and at Our expense, do and concur in doing and permit to be done all such acts and things that may be necessary or may reasonably be required by Us for the purpose of enforcing any rights and remedies, or for obtaining relief or indemnity from any other organisation(s) or person(s), to which We shall be or would become entitled upon Us paying for or indemnifying You in respect of legal liability under this insurance.

Should You incur any legal liability which is not covered by this insurance:

- 6.20.1 due to the application of an Excess; and/or
- 6.20.2 where the amount of any judgement or settlements exceed the applicable Limit of Liability;

You will be entitled to the first call on the proceeds of all recoveries made, by either You or Us, on account of such legal liability until fully reimbursed for such uninsured amount or amounts (less the actual costs of making such recoveries where these costs are incurred by Us) and any remaining amount(s) will be applied to reimburse Us.

6.19 Subrogation Waiver

Notwithstanding Condition 6.18, We hereby agree to waive all our rights of subrogation under this Policy against:

(a) each of the parties described under Definition 7.32

6.19.2 any corporation, organisation or person which or who owns or controls the majority of the capital stock of any corporation or organisation to which or to whom protection is afforded under this Policy. Where such corporation, organisation or person is protected from liability insured against hereunder by any other policy or indemnity or insurance, Our right of subrogation is not waived to the extent and up to the amount of such other policy.

6.20 Arbitration

"The parties to the contract may mutually agree and enter into a separate Arbitration Agreement to settle any and all disputes in relation to this policy.

Arbitration shall be conducted under and in accordance with the provisions of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996."

GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL MECHANISM

If you may have a grievance that requires to be redressed, you may contact the us with the details of the grievance through

Stage 1

If you are dissatisfied with the resolution provided or for lack of response, you may write to head.customercare@sbigeneral.in;We will look into the matter and decide the same expeditiously within 14 days from the date of receipt of your complaint. For Senior Citizens: Senior Citizens can reach us at seniorcitizengrievances@sbigeneral.in; Toll Free - 1800 22 1111 / 1800 102 1111 Monday to Saturday (8 am - 8 pm)



Stage 2

In case, you are not satisfied with the decision/resolution communicated by the above office, or have not received any response within 14 days, you may send your Appeal addressed to the Grievance Redressal Officer at: gro@sbigeneral.in. or contact at: 022-42412070.

Address: Grievance Redressal Officer, 9th Floor, A & B Wing, Fulcrum Building, Sahar Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai 400 099

List of Grievance Redressal Officers at Branch:

https://content.sbigeneral.in/uploads/0449cac1bcd144bbb160 d3f6b714fbbd.pdf/

Stage 3

In case, you are not satisfied with the decision/resolution communicated by the above office, or have not received any response within 14 days, you may Register your complaint with IRDAI on the below given link https://bimabharosa.irdai.gov.in/Home/Home

Stage 4

If your grievance remains unresolved from the date of filing your first complaint or is partially resolved, you may approach the Insurance Ombudsman falling in your jurisdiction for Redressal of your Grievance. The details of the Insurance Ombudsman can be accessed at https://www.cioins.co.in/Ombudsman

If Your issue remains unresolved You may approach IRDAI by calling on the Toll-Free no. 155255 or You can register an online complaint on the website http://igms.irda.gov.in



List of Ombudsman offices with contact details are attached for ready reference.

Office Details	Jurisdiction of Office Union Territory, District)	Date Of Taking Charge
AHMEDABAD - Shri Kuldip Singh	Gujarat,	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Dadra & Nagar Haveli,	
Jeevan Prakash Building, 6th floor,	Daman and Diu.	
Tilak Marg, Relief Road,		03-10-2019
Ahmedabad – 380 001.		03 10 2013
Tel.: 079 - 25501201/02/05/06		
Email: bimalokpal.ahmedabad@ecoi.co.in		
BENGALURU - Smt. Neerja Shah		
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,		
Jeevan Soudha Building,PID No. 57-27-N-19		
Ground Floor, 19/19, 24th Main Road, JP Nagar, Ist Phase, Bengaluru – 560 078. Tel.: 080 - 26652048 / 26652049 Email: bimalokpal.bengaluru@ecoi.co.in	Karnataka.	23-04-2018
BHOPAL - Shri Guru Saran Shrivastava	Madhya Pradesh	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman, Janak Vihar Complex, 2nd Floor, 6, Malviya Nagar, Opp. Airtel Office, Near New Market, Bhopal – 462 003. Tel.: 0755 - 2769201 / 2769202	Chattisgarh.	24-05-2018
Fax: 0755 - 2769203		



Email: bimalokpal.bhopal@ecoi.co.in		
BHUBANESHWAR - Shri Suresh Chandra Panda		
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,		
62, Forest park,		
Bhubneshwar – 751 009.	Orissa.	11-09-2019
Tel.: 0674 - 2596461 /2596455		
Fax: 0674 - 2596429		
Email: bimalokpal.bhubaneswar@ecoi.co.in		
CHANDIGARH - Dr. Dinesh Kumar Verma	Punjab,	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Haryana,	
S.C.O. No. 101, 102 & 103, 2nd Floor,	Himachal Pradesh,	
Batra Building, Sector 17 – D,	Jammu & Kashmir,	
Chandigarh – 160 017.	Chandigarh.	16-04-2018
Tel.: 0172 - 2706196 / 2706468		
Fax: 0172 - 2708274		
Email: bimalokpal.chandigarh@ecoi.co.in		
CHENNAI - Shri M. Vasantha Krishna	Tamil Nadu,	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Pondicherry Town and	
Fatima Akhtar Court, 4th Floor, 453,	Karaikal (which are part of	
	Pondicherry).	
Anna Salai, Teynampet,		03-05-2018
CHENNAI – 600 018.		
Tel.: 044 - 24333668 / 24335284		
Fax: 044 - 24333664		
Email: bimalokpal.chennai@ecoi.co.in		
DELHI - Shri Sudhir Krishna		
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,		
2/2 A, Universal Insurance Building,	Delle:	12.00.2010
Asaf Ali Road,	Delhi.	12-09-2019
New Delhi – 110 002.		
Tel.: 011 - 23232481/23213504		



Email: bimalokpal.delhi@ecoi.co.in		
GUWAHATI - Shri Kiriti .B. Saha	Assam,	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Meghalaya,	
Jeevan Nivesh, 5th Floor,	Manipur,	
Nr. Panbazar over bridge, S.S. Road,	Mizoram,	02-05-2018
Guwahati – 781001(ASSAM).	Arunachal Pradesh,	
Tel.: 0361 - 2632204 / 2602205	Nagaland and Tripura.	
Email: bimalokpal.guwahati@ecoi.co.in		
HYDERABAD - Shri I. Suresh Babu	Andhra Pradesh,	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Telangana,	
6-2-46, 1st floor, "Moin Court",	Yanam and	
Lane Opp. Saleem Function Palace,	part of Territory of Pondicherry.	
A. C. Guards, Lakdi-Ka-Pool,		11-06-2018
Hyderabad - 500 004.		
Tel.: 040 - 67504123 / 23312122		
Fax: 040 - 23376599		
Email: bimalokpal.hyderabad@ecoi.co.in		
JAIPUR - Smt. Sandhya Baliga		
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,		
Jeevan Nidhi – II Bldg., Gr. Floor,		
Bhawani Singh Marg,	Daireathan	12.04.2040
Jaipur - 302 005.	Rajasthan.	13-04-2018
Tel.: 0141 - 2740363		
Email: Bimalokpal.jaipur@ecoi.co.in		
ERNAKULAM - Ms. Poonam Bodra	Kerala,	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Lakshadweep,	
2nd Floor, Pulinat Bldg.,	Mahe-a part of Pondicherry.	
Opp. Cochin Shipyard, M. G. Road,		07-11-2018
Ernakulam - 682 015.		11 11 1010
Tel.: 0484 - 2358759 / 2359338		
Fax: 0484 - 2359336		
Email: bimalokpal.ernakulam@ecoi.co.in		
KOLKATA - Shri P. K. Rath	West Bengal,	20.00.2012
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Sikkim,	30-09-2019



Hindustan Bldg. Annexe, 4th Floor, 4, C.R. Avenue, KOLKATA - 700 072. Tel.: 033 - 22124339 / 22124340 Fax: 033 - 22124341 Email: bimalokpal.kolkata@ecoi.co.in	Andaman & Nicobar Islands.	
LUCKNOW -Shri Justice Anil Kumar	Districts of Uttar Pradesh :	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,6th Floor, Jeevan Bhawan, Phase-II, Nawal Kishore Road, Hazratganj, Lucknow - 226 001. Tel.: 0522 - 2231330 / 2231331 Fax: 0522 - 2231310 Email: bimalokpal.lucknow@ecoi.co.in	Laitpur, Jhansi, Mahoba, Hamirpur, Banda, Chitrakoot, Allahabad, Mirzapur, Sonbhabdra, Fatehpur, Pratapgarh, Jaunpur, Varanasi, Gazipur, Jalaun, Kanpur, Lucknow, Unnao, Sitapur, Lakhimpur, Bahraich, Barabanki, Raebareli, Sravasti, Gonda, Faizabad, Amethi, Kaushambi, Balrampur, Basti, Ambedkarnagar, Sultanpur, Maharajgang, Santkabirnagar, Azamgarh, Kushinagar, Gorkhpur, Deoria, Mau, Ghazipur, Chandauli, Ballia, Sidharathnagar.	11-09-2019
MUMBAI - Shri Milind A. Kharat	Goa,	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman, 3rd Floor, Jeevan Seva Annexe, S. V. Road, Santacruz (W), Mumbai - 400 054. Tel.: 022 - 26106552 / 26106960 Fax: 022 - 26106052 Email: bimalokpal.mumbai@ecoi.co.in	Mumbai Metropolitan Region excluding Navi Mumbai & Thane.	04-05-2018
NOIDA - Shri Chandra Shekhar Prasad	State of Uttaranchal and the following Districts of Uttar Pradesh:	17-09-2019



Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Agra, Aligarh, Bagpat,	
	Bareilly, Bijnor, Budaun,	
	Bulandshehar, Etah, Kanooj, Mainpuri,	
	Mathura, Meerut,	
	Moradabad,	
	Muzaffarnagar, Oraiyya,	
	Pilibhit, Etawah,	
	Farrukhabad, Firozbad,	
	Gautambodhanagar, Ghaziabad, Hardoi,	
	Shahjahanpur, Hapur,	
	Shamli, Rampur, Kashganj,	
	Sambhal, Amroha,	
	Hathras, Kanshiramnagar,	
Dharwar Cahai Dala	Saharanpur.	
Bhagwan Sahai Palace		
4th Floor, Main Road,		
Naya Bans, Sector 15,		
Distt: Gautam Buddh Nagar,		
U.P-201301.		
Tel.: 0120-2514250 / 2514252 / 2514253		
Email: bimalokpal.noida@ecoi.co.in		
PATNA - Shri N. K. Singh	Bihar,	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Jharkhand.	
1st Floor, Kalpana Arcade Building,,		
Bazar Samiti Road,		
Bahadurpur,		09-10-2019
Patna 800 006.		
Tel.: 0612-2680952		
Email: bimalokpal.patna@ecoi.co.in		
PUNE - Shri Vinay Sah	0.4 - 1 1	
	Maharashtra, Area of Navi Mumbai and	
Office of the Insurance Ombudsman,	Thane	
Jeevan Darshan Bldg., 3rd Floor,	excluding Mumbai	
3 , 11 11 ,	Metropolitan Region.	03-12-2019
C.T.S. No.s. 195 to 198,		
N.C. Kelkar Road, Narayan Peth,		
Pune – 411 030.		
Tune 411 000.		



Tel.: 020-41312555

Email: bimalokpal.pune@ecoi.co.in

INSURANCE IS THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THE SOLICITATION

Address and contact number of Governing Body of Insurance Council

Secretary General Governing Body of Insurance Council Jeevan Seva Annexe, 3rd Floor (Above MTNT) S. V. Road, Santacruz (W) Mumbai – 400 054

Tel: 022-6106889

Fax: 022-6106980, 6106052 Email: inscoun@vsnl.net

7. **DEFINITIONS**

7.1 Advertising Injury means:

- (a) libel, or slander; or
- (b) any infringement of copyright or passing off of title or slogan; or
- (c) unfair competition, or idea misappropriation contrary to an implied contract; or
- (d) invasion or breach of privacy,
 - arising from any advertisement, publicity article, broadcast or telecast provided it is caused by or arises out of Your advertising activities.
- **7.2** Aircraft means any craft or object designed to travel through air or space, other than model Aircraft.
- **7.3 Compensation** means monies paid or agreed to be paid as a result of any judgment, award or settlement for Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising. Injury.
- 7.4 Electronic Data means any facts, concepts or information converted to a form usable for communications or displays or distribution or processing by electronic or electromechanical data processing or electronically controlled equipment which includes but not limited to programs or software or other coded instructions for such equipment.
- **7.5 Employee** means any person who is employed by the Insured or in respect of whom the Insured is required to have cover for Compensation under any relevant Workers' Compensation Act or ordinance.



- **7.6 Employment Practices** means any wrongful or unfair dismissal, denial of natural justice, defamation, misleading representation or advertising, harassment or discrimination in respect of your Employees
- **7.7 General Liability** means the Your legal liability for Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury caused by or arising out of any Occurrence happening in connection with the Insured Business other than Products Liability.
- **7.8 Geographical Limits** means anywhere in the World, except for North America where the Policy will only apply in respect of:
 - (a) Products exported to such countries; and/or
 - (b) travelling Employees whose normal place of residence is outside such countries.
- **7.9 Hovercraft** means any vessel, craft or device made or intended to float on or travel on or through the atmosphere or water on a cushion of air provided by a downward blast.

7.10 Incidental Contracts means

- (a) any written rental agreement for the lease of real or personal property, not containing an obligation to insure such property or for You to be strictly liable regardless of fault;
- (b) any written contract with any authority or entity responsible for the supply of electricity, fuel, gas, natural gas, air, steam, sewerage reticulation control systems, waste disposal facilities, telephone and communications services or other essential services, except those in connection with work done by You for such authorities or entities;
- (c) any written contract with any railway authority for the loading, unloading or transport of Your Products, including any contract relating to the operation of railway sidings;
- (d) those contracts specifically designated in the Policy Schedule.

7.11 Insured means

- (a) the individuals, companies or firms specified in the Schedule as the 'Insured'.
- (b) all existing subsidiary and/or controlled corporations (including subsidiaries thereof) of the Insured incorporated in India and/or any other organisations under the control of the Insured;
- (c) all subsidiary and/or controlled corporations (including subsidiaries thereof) of the Insured and/or any other organisations under the control of the Insured incorporated in India and which are constituted or acquired by the Insured after the commencement of the Period of Insurance;
- (d) every subsidiary and/or controlled corporation and/or other organisation of the Insured which is divested during the Period of Insurance, but only in respect of claims made against such divested



subsidiary and/or controlled corporation or organisation caused by or arising out of Occurrences insured against by this Policy, which occurred prior to such divestment.

- 7.12 Insured Business means all activities involved in the business specified in the Schedule and shall include:
- (a) the ownership and tenancy of premises by the Insured;
- (b) the provision of any sponsorship, charities, galas, first aid, medical, ambulance or fire fighting services by or on behalf of the Insured and any of the persons mentioned in 7.32 (f);
- (c) private work undertaken by Employees for any director, partner, proprietors, officers or executives of the Insured;
- (d) the provision of any canteen, social and/or sporting club or welfare and/or child care facilities by or on behalf of the Insured and any of the persons mentioned in 7.32 (f), which are primarily for the benefit of Employees.
- **7.13 Limit of Liability** means the limit of liability as specified in the Schedule.
- **7.14 Medical Persons** means qualified medical persons, including but not limited to, medical practitioners, medical nurses, dentists and first aid attendants.
- **7.15 North America** means
- (a) the United States of America and the Dominion of Canada;
- (b) any state, territory or protectorate incorporated in, or administered by, the United States of America or the Dominion of Canada; and
- (c) any country or territory subject to laws of the United states of America or the Dominion of Canada.
- **7.16** Occurrence means an event including continuous
- or repeated exposure to substantially the same general conditions, which results in Personal Injury, Property Damage or Advertising Injury that is neither expected nor intended (except for matters set out in item 7.18 (e)) by You.

With respect to Personal Injury and Property Damage, all events of a series consequent upon or attributable to one source or original cause shall be deemed to be one Occurrence.

All Advertising Injury arising out of the same injurious material or act (regardless of frequency or repetition thereof, the number and kind of media used, or the number of claimants) shall be deemed to be one Occurrence.



- **7.17 Period of Insurance** means the period specified in the Schedule.
- 7.18 Personal Injury means
 - (a) bodily injury, death, sickness, disease, illness, disability, shock, fright, mental anguish and mental injury, including loss of consortium or services resulting therefrom;
 - (b) false arrest, false imprisonment, wrongful detention, malicious prosecution and humiliation;
 - (c) libel, or slander unless arising out of Advertising Injury;
 - (d) wrongful entry or wrongful eviction or other invasion of right of privacy;
 - (e) assault and battery which was not committed by You or at your direction, unless committed for the reasonably proportionate purpose of preventing or eliminating danger to persons or property.
- **7.19 Policy** means this policy wording, the most recent Schedule and any written endorsements to the Policy issued by Us.
- **7.20 Pollutants** mean any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapour, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and waste material. 'Waste material' includes material to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.
- 7.21 Products mean anything (after it has ceased to be in Your physical possession or legal control), manufactured, constructed, erected, assembled, installed, grown, extracted, produced or processed, treated, modified, repaired, serviced, bottled, labelled, handled, sold, supplied, re-supplied or distributed, imported or exported, by You or on Your behalf (including Your predecessors in the Insured Business), including any packaging or containers thereof, also including the design, formula or specification, directions, markings, instructions, advice or warnings given or omitted to be given in connection with such Products and anything which, by law or otherwise, You are deemed to have manufactured in the course of the Insured Business including discontinued Products.

However, Products do not include:

- (i) food and beverage supplied by You or on Your behalf primarily to Employees as a staff henefit:
- (ii) any vending machine or any other property rented to or located for use of others but not sold by You,

Any claims made against You in respect of Personal Injury or Property Damage arising out of an Occurrence in connection with items specified in (i) and (ii) above shall be regarded as General Liability claims hereunder.

7.22 Products Liability means Your legal liability for Personal Injury or Property Damage caused by or arising out of any Products or the reliance upon a representation or warranty made at any time with respect to such Products; but only where such Personal Injury or Property Damage occurs away from the premises owned



or leased by or rented to You and after physical possession of such Products has been relinquished to others.

7.23 Property Damage means

- (a) physical loss, destruction of or damage to tangible property, including loss of use from such physical loss, destruction or damage; or
- (b) loss of use of tangible property which has not been physically lost, destroyed or damaged,.
- **7.24 Schedule** means the Schedule attachment which forms part of this Policy and which specifies the policy number, issued by the Company.
- **7.25 Stand-Alone Superannuation Fund** means a superannuation fund or pension fund established by the Insured under its own trust structure and either managed by them or on their behalf. It does not include an industry fund, a wholesale master trust, a retail master trust, or public sector employees' funds.
- **7.26 Terrorism** means an act including but not limited to the use or threat of force or violence by any person or group of persons, whether acting alone or on behalf of or in connection with any organisation or government which from its nature or context is committed for or in connection with political, religious, ideological, ethnic or similar purposes or reasons, including the intention to influence any government and/or to put the public or any section of the public in fear.
- 7.27 Tool of Trade means a Vehicle that has tools, implements, machinery or plant attached to or towed by the Vehicle and is being used by You at your premises or on any Worksite. Tool of Trade does not include any Vehicle whilst travelling to or from a Worksite or Vehicles that are used to carry goods to or from any premises.
- **7.28 Vehicle** means any type of machine on wheels or on self laid tracks made or intended to be propelled by other than manual or animal power and any trailer or other attachment to be utilised in conjunction with or drawn by any such machine.
- **7.29** Watercraft means any vessel, craft or thing made or intended to float on or in or travel through water [, other than model boats.
- 7.30 We, Us, Our means SBI General Insurance Co Ltd
- **7.31 Worksite** means any premises or site where any work is performed for or in connection with the Insured Business together with all areas surrounding such premises or site or all areas in between such premises or site that You use in connection with such work.



7.32 You and Your means:

- (a) the Insured;
- (b) every past, present or future director, shareholder, partner, proprietor, officer, executive or Employee of the Insured (including the spouse of any such person while accompanying such person on any commercial trip or function in connection with the Insured Business), or work experience persons or volunteers while such persons are acting for or on behalf of the Insured or within the scope of their duties in such capacity;
- (c) any Employer Stand-Alone Superannuation Fund managed by any the Insured, and the trustees and the directors of the trustee of such fund, but not any investment or retirement fund managers;
- (d) every principal in respect of liability of such principal arising out of:
 - (i) the performance by or on behalf of the Insured of any contract or agreement for the performance of work for such principal, but only to the extent required by such contract or agreement and in any event only for such coverage and Limits of Liability as are provided by this Policy;
 - (ii) any Products sold or supplied by the Insured , but only in respect of the Insured's own acts or omissions in connection with such Products and in any event only for such coverage and Limits of Liability as are provided by this Policy;
- (e) every person, corporation, organisation, trustee or estate to whom or to which the Insured is obligated by reason of law, whether express or implied, to provide insurance such as is afforded by this Policy, but only to the extent required by such law other than by liability created by a contract and in any event only for such coverage and Limits of Liability as are provided by this Policy;
- (f) every officer, member, Employee or voluntary helper of the Insured whilst working in a canteen, social or sporting club, or providing first aid, medical, ambulance or fire fighting services, or running Employee charities, welfare or child care facilities; but only while
 - they are working, providing or running the service in question in their capacity as such an officer, member, Employee or voluntary helper;
- (g) any director, partner, proprietor, officer or executive of the Insured in respect of private work undertaken by any Employee for such person and any Employee whilst actually undertaking such work;
- (h) the estates, legal representatives, heirs or assigns of:
 - (i) any deceased or insolvent persons; or
 - (ii) persons who are unable to manage their own affairs by reason of mental disorder or incapacity;

who would otherwise be indemnified by this Policy, but only in respect of liability incurred by such persons as described in clause h (i) and h (ii) above,



(i) every party including joint venture companies and partnerships to whom the Insured is obligated by virtue of any contract or agreement to provide insurance such as is afforded by this Policy; but only to the extent required by such coverage and Limits of Liability as are provided by this Policy.